

RULES OF PROCEDURE OF THE BOARD OF REGULATORS

The Body of European Regulators for Electronic Communications (hereinafter, “**BEREC**”) has been established by Regulation (EC) 1211/2009 (hereinafter the “**Regulation**”) and its functioning shall be governed by the Regulation and these Rules of Procedure (hereinafter, the “**Rules of Procedure**”). In case of inconsistency between these Rules of Procedure and the Regulation, the Regulation shall prevail.

The Board of Regulators shall exercise the relevant tasks assigned to BEREC by the Regulation, in accordance with the provisions of these Rules of Procedure.

Article 1 – Composition

Members

1. The Board of Regulators shall be composed of one member per Member State who shall be the head or nominated high-level representative of the national regulatory authority established in each Member State with primary responsibility for overseeing the day-to-day operation of the markets for electronic communications networks and services (hereinafter NRA).
2. Each NRA shall nominate one alternate, whose names shall be communicated to the BEREC Office (hereinafter “Office”). When neither the Member nor the nominated alternate can attend a meeting of the Board of Regulators, a further alternate may attend and stand in for those representatives, provided that he/she is authorised to do so in writing and that the authorisation is communicated to the Chair and to the Administrative Manager of the Office in advance of the meeting concerned.
3. The Board of Regulators shall be assisted by a working group (Contact Network) composed of senior representatives of all Members to prepare the decisions to be taken by the Board of Regulators. The European Commission and the other Observers shall be represented at the Contact Network.

Observers

4. Heads (or their nominated high-level representatives) of the independent national regulatory authorities from EEA States that are not members of the European Union and from those States that are candidates for accession to the European Union shall have the right to participate in Board of Regulators meetings as observers (“Observers”).
5. The European Commission and the EFTA Surveillance Authority shall attend as Observers and shall be represented at an appropriate level.
6. Upon the suggestion of Members or Observers, or on its own initiative, the Chair may invite, subject to prior communication to the Board of Regulators, Heads (or their

representatives) of other independent national regulatory authorities to participate in Board of Regulators meetings as Observers.

Other participants

7. Upon suggestion of Members or Observers, or on its own initiative, the Chair may invite, subject to prior communication to the Board of Regulators, external experts to take part in meetings of the Board of Regulators. Such invitations should be made not later than four weeks before the meeting in question. A clear distinction should be made between experts, on the one hand, and interested parties (market participants, consumers and end-users or their representatives) on the other hand (whose participation in BEREC work shall be through consultations and/or public hearings).

Nomination

8. The Office shall be responsible for maintaining and keeping updated a contact list of all the nominated representatives mentioned above.

Article 2 – Appointment and Term of the Chair and Vice-Chairs

1. Before serving her/his term as Chair for one year, the Chair shall first serve one year as Vice-Chair. She/he shall also serve as Vice-Chair for the year following her/his term as Chair. Every year the Board of Regulators shall appoint the Chair for the year subsequent to the following year according to the selection procedure described in this Article.
2. The Board of Regulators shall elect the Vice-Chair who shall become Chair the following year from among the Members with voting rights. Candidacies for Vice-Chair shall be submitted to the Office in writing either by the candidates themselves or by other members of the Board of Regulators at least 2 months before the election. The Chair will circulate the list of candidates to the Members within five working days of that date.
3. A nomination for candidacy must be supported in writing by at least 4 Members. The candidate shall have a record of active personal participation in BEREC and shall ensure that she/he is able to devote a significant part of her/his time to the position in BEREC. A candidate shall be elected by a 2/3 majority of the Members. The election shall take place at the last ordinary plenary meeting of the year. Two tellers shall be designated from among the members to assist in the vote.
4. The election shall take place in accordance with the following procedure:
 - a. If the Office only receives one candidacy, this candidate shall be elected provided that she/he receives the support of 2/3 majority of all Members. Should the candidate not receive that support in the first round, the vote shall be repeated once. Should the candidate not receive that support in the second round, a new invitation for candidacies shall be opened.
 - b. If two or more candidacies are submitted and during the first vote no candidate obtains a 2/3 majority of the votes of all Members, the candidate with the least support shall be withdrawn from the selection process. Rounds will run until a candidate receives a 2/3 majority of votes of all Members. Where there remains a

sole candidacy that does not obtain the support of a 2/3 majority, a new invitation for candidacies shall be opened.

5. In addition to the support provided to the Chair by the two Vice-Chairs, the Board of Regulators may decide to elect other Members as additional Vice-Chairs for 1 year. The election of the additional Vice-Chairs will take place during the last ordinary Plenary meeting of the year for the following year in accordance with the voting rules set out in paragraph 3, 4 and 5.
6. The serving Chair shall inform the Board of Regulators of the voting results.

Article 3 – Duties of the Chair and Vice Chair

1. The Chair shall be responsible for external relations on behalf of BEREC. She/he shall inform all Members of any planned external engagements and contacts and report on their results, also providing relevant materials.
2. The Board of Regulators may decide to grant the Chair a clearly defined mandate to speak and act on behalf of BEREC.
3. A Vice-Chair shall assume the duties of the Chair if the latter is not in a position to perform her/his duties. The Vice-Chair(s) will assist the Chair, at her/his request, in the performance of her/his duties.

Article 4 – Plenary meetings of the Board of Regulators

1. The ordinary plenary meetings of the Board of Regulators shall be convened by the Chair in writing not less than ten days prior to the proposed meeting date and shall occur at least four times a year.
2. Extraordinary plenary meetings of the Board of Regulators may also be convened at the initiative of the Chair in consultation with the Administrative Manager, or at the request of at least 1/3 of the Board of Regulators' members. Extraordinary meetings shall be convened by the Chair in writing not less than three days before the date of the meeting.
3. Any Member or Observer wishing to host a Board of Regulators meeting shall submit a proposal to the Office. In the event of more than one proposal being received for a particular meeting, the Member planned to Chair BEREC for the concerned period shall have the final decision. In the event that no proposal for hosting a meeting is presented by a Member or Observer, the Chair may request the Office to make a proposal to organise the meeting at a suitable place.
4. Notices of the meetings shall indicate the date, time and place of the proposed meeting and shall contain the agenda and the working documents, the draft proposals and all relevant material which are needed for the meeting. The Office shall be responsible for distributing the agenda and relevant documents.

5. The Administrative Manager shall be entitled to take part, without having the right to vote, RoP as revised in June 2014

in meetings of the Board of Regulators.

6. Each Member may be represented at the meeting by another Member, provided that written authorisation from the absent Member is submitted to the Chair. A Member may represent a maximum of two other Members.

Article 5 – Agenda

1. A provisional agenda shall be drawn up by the Chair assisted by the Administrative Manager. It shall contain, in addition to those items the inclusion of which is requested by a Member, any item the inclusion of which is requested by the Administrative Manager, in agreement with the Chair.
2. Any request made by Members for including, deleting or substituting an item on the agenda shall state the reasons on which it is based. The Chair shall inform the other Members of any such request.
3. The agenda shall be adopted at the beginning of each meeting.

Article 6 – Documents for meetings

1. The provisional agenda and draft proposals, documents, submission notes and other relevant material shall be prepared in accordance with the decisions of the Contact Network, together with any additional material considered necessary by the Administrative Manager. As the case may require, the material shall be prepared either by the Office or by a Working Group with the assistance of the Office. The material shall be distributed by the Office not less than 10 days before ordinary meetings and not less than 3 days before extraordinary meetings, so that Members have the opportunity to propose amendments prior to the vote. When justified by urgent or exceptional circumstances, the Chair, at the request of the relevant Expert Working Group or the Office, may shorten, as necessary, time limits for sending the documentation.
2. Press releases, and exceptionally other documents, such as short statements, may be prepared and agreed during meetings of the Board of Regulators.
3. Documents submitted to the Board of Regulators shall be accompanied by a covering submission note prepared either by the Office or by a Working Group with the assistance of the Office, which outlines the key issues and the decision being sought by the Board of Regulators.

Article 7 – Minutes and follow-up

1. The Office shall prepare the draft minutes of the meetings of the Contact Network and the Board of Regulators.

2. The minutes of each meeting shall as a general rule indicate in respect of each item:

- a. Documents submitted to the Contact Network or to the Board of Regulators
 - b. A summary record of the proceedings
 - c. A record of the decisions adopted or the conclusions reached by the Contact Network or the Board of Regulators, summarising the main arguments together with the reservations of a member at its request
 - d. The list of attendees
3. The draft minutes shall be distributed electronically for comments by the Members no later than 5 working days after that meeting. The minutes of all meetings shall be kept by the Office in a register, which shall be accessible to any Member upon request.
 4. The follow-up actions to be undertaken after the meeting will be summarised by the Chair in the end of the meeting and will be circulated electronically within 1 working day.

Article 8 – Quorum

The quorum necessary for meetings shall be achieved when at least two-thirds of all voting Members are present or represented by proxy in accordance with Article 9 (2). In order to determine whether the quorum is met, an attendance list shall be drawn up by the Office at the beginning of each meeting.

Article 9 – Voting procedures for meetings

1. The Board of Regulators shall act by a two-thirds majority of all its Members unless otherwise provided in the Regulation, in the Framework Directive or in the Specific Directives, voting in accordance with the procedures in this article and Article 10.
2. In addition to his own vote, each voting Member may cast a maximum of two votes received by written proxy. The proxy shall be submitted to the Chair at the beginning of the meeting and shall be recorded in the minutes.
3. Voting shall be by a show of hands or by secret ballot. A request for a secret ballot must be made by at least two voting Members present and supported by a majority of Members, unless decisions concerning a particular person, that shall be always voted by a secret ballot.
4. The Chair shall submit a proposal for a decision to the Members, who shall vote by “yes” if they are in favour of it, or “no”, or “abstention”.
5. If at least the requisite number of Members has voted in favour of the proposal the Chair shall declare the proposal approved.
6. If the number of Members who have either voted against the proposal or who have formally abstained results in the threshold for approval not having been met, the Chairman shall declare that the proposal has not been approved.
7. The adopted documents or decisions shall include the reservations of an NRA at its

request.

Article 10 – Electronic voting procedure

1. The Chair may seek a decision of the Board of Regulators by means of an electronic voting procedure when a meeting is not possible or practicable and cannot wait until the next plenary meeting.
2. The Chair shall inform the Members and Observers as soon as possible of the need and justification for an electronic voting procedure. Where a future need can be foreseen, the Chair shall, if possible, inform Members and Observers at a meeting of its intended use.
3. The electronic voting shall be initiated by the Chair in consultation with the Administrative Manager. Draft decisions together with the relevant documents shall be addressed to Members and, for information, to Observers, after approval of the Chair. The minimum period which must be given for comments to be submitted is 5 working days, except in case of justified extreme urgency where the time-limit may be shortened to a minimum of one working day. All comments on draft BEREK decisions and documents shall be copied also to the Members of the Board of Regulators and Contact Network.
4. If significantly different opinions are expressed in the comments, the Chair with the support of the Administrative Manager, shall attempt to resolve the differences between the respective Members. The Chair shall prepare a final proposal and submit it to the vote. She/he shall send it to the Members and shall lay down a time-limit which must not be less than 7 days, except in cases of justified extreme urgency where the time-limit is of one working day.
5. For any voting round to be valid, at least the majority of the Members must have cast their vote or formally abstained.
6. Article 1(2) should apply *mutatis mutandis*. The NRA concerned should communicate to the Chair the authorisation of a further alternate to sign the electronic voting ballot at the latest when the NRA concerned casts its vote.
7. Article 9(2) should apply *mutatis mutandis*. The proxy shall be submitted to the Chair at the latest when the voting NRA casts its vote on behalf of another NRA.
8. If the number of Members who have either voted against the proposal or who have formally abstained prevent the required threshold for approval being met, the Chair shall declare the proposal not approved. In this case the Chair, in consultation with the Administrative Manager, shall inform the Members and Observers of the number of votes cast for and against the proposal, as well as the number of formal abstentions, in the first round and shall organise a second and last round of electronic voting.
9. In the second round, the votes of Members who have not cast their vote and the abstention will be counted as representing support for the position taken by the majority of those who have voted. The proposal will be approved if the required majority of the votes are considered to be in favour of the proposal.

10. A full report on the outcome of the procedure will be made available to Members and Observers. The report will indicate in particular:
 - a. The detailed results of the voting (i.e., number of votes cast – specifying the number of negative and positive votes and abstentions); and
 - b. The remarks and reservations of Members upon their request.
11. Members can make public use of their part of the voting report if they want.
12. If the electronic procedure remains undecided, an extraordinary meeting shall be convened at the initiative of the Chair.

Article 11 – Expert Working Groups

The Board of Regulators may decide to create Expert Working Groups to assist with the performance of the tasks and functions of BEREC and request the Office to provide support. The Chair of each Expert Working Group shall be designated by the Board of Regulators. Expert Working Groups shall be open to all Members and Observers.

Article 12 – Contact Network

The Contact Network is a specific type of Expert Working Group, composed of senior representatives of all Members and Observers, chaired by a representative of the Chair of the Board of Regulators. Its members shall have a mandate to speak on behalf of their NRAs. The Administrative Manager attends Contact Networks meetings.

The Contact Network ensures coordination of proposals to be considered by the Board of Regulators. The Board of Regulators may decide to delegate some of its duties to the Contact Network. However this mandate shall be clearly defined in advance.

In particular, the Contact Network shall perform the following tasks:

1. The Contact Network shall make the necessary preparations with the support of the Office for each meeting of the Board of Regulators. To this end it shall:
 - a. aim to resolve outstanding differences of opinion between the Members,
 - b. ensure that proposed papers to be submitted for consideration by the Board of Regulators are duly and timely prepared, and
 - c. with the assistance of the Administrative Manager, agree the draft agenda for each meeting of the Board of Regulators, including a proposal of subjects to be addressed as A items at the Board of Regulators meetings, which shall then be proposed to the Chair of the Board of Regulators for approval.
2. The Contact Network shall act as a filter and facilitator between Expert Working Groups, on the one hand, and the Board of Regulators, on the other hand, with the assistance of the Office. To this end, it shall, inter alia:
 - a. assess the completeness and the consistency of papers proposed to the Board of Regulators, and ensure that these papers are ready for discussion and

- decision by the Board of Regulators, and
- b. facilitate the arrangements and coordination with the Office.
3. The Contact Network can delay items being considered by the Board of Regulators where issues need further work and can make recommendations to the Board, for example in setting priorities for the execution of the Work Programme.
 4. The Contact Network also operates as an informal network whose members are the key contact points between NRAs for seeking and exchanging information on regulatory issues.
 5. The Contact Network shall meet three to four weeks prior to the ordinary meetings of the Board of Regulators, and may, if requested by the Chair of the Contact Network, meet prior to any extraordinary meetings.
 6. Article 4.3 shall apply to the organisation of meetings of the Contact Network.

Article 13 — Article 7 and 7a Expert Working Groups (establishment — functioning — reports- voting)

1. Pursuant to Articles 7 and 7a of Directive 2002/21/EC, as amended by Directive 2009/140/EC, as well as to Regulation 1211/2009, BEREC shall issue an Opinion in the event that the European Commission opens a Phase II investigation on a draft national measure concerning either:
 - the definition of a relevant market and the identification of operators having significant market power, or
 - the imposition of regulatory obligations.
2. The Office shall be responsible for:
 - keeping track of all Articles 7 and 7a notifications from the NRAs to the European Commission;
 - identifying an Expert Working Group (EWG) Coordinator;
 - establishing a dedicated Expert Working Group composed of NRAs/Office experts and chaired by a Rapporteur.
3. NRAs shall nominate a focal point to help in identifying national experts. NRAs shall commit to make their experts available to take part in Articles 7 and 7a Expert Working Groups' activities when required. The notifying NRA will not be part of the EWG.
4. Subject to Articles 20 and 22 of the Regulation, the experts shall refrain from any unauthorised disclosure of information received in the line of duty, unless that information has already been made public or is accessible to the public, even after the notification procedure has been closed.
5. As long as the EWG is on duty, the experts shall refrain from any contact with any third parties on any issue that might have any direct or indirect interest in the case, without prejudice to the meetings organized by the Coordinator.

6. The EWG shall closely cooperate with the NRA concerned as well as with the European Commission, with a view to the exchange of information concerning the notification itself and the planned work.
7. In the event of a Phase II investigation concerning an Article 7 notification, the EWG shall deliver to the Board of Regulators a draft Opinion in fourteen working days following the opening of the European Commission's Phase II investigation.
8. In the event of a Phase II investigation concerning an Article 7a notification, the EWG shall deliver to the Board of Regulators a draft Opinion on the European Commission's notification in twenty- four working days following the opening of the European Commission's Phase II investigation.
9. The Office will submit the draft Opinion to the Board of Regulators for comments to be provided to the Coordinator and the Rapporteur of the EWG and copied to the Board of Regulators and Contact Network within two working days.
10. The EWG shall take into account any comments provided and shall send, within two working days, a final draft Opinion to the Chair, who will submit it to Board of Regulators.
11. NRAs shall vote within one working day, according to the rules of the second round of the electronic voting procedure as in Article 10.7 above. The Board of Regulators shall adopt the final BEREC Article 7 and 7a Opinion according to the majority provided for respectively in Article 4.9 of the Regulation and in Article 7a, paragraph 3 of Directive 2002/21/EC, as amended by Directive 2009/140/EC.
12. BEREC Opinions shall be sent to the European Commission on the same day of adoption and shall be published in full within three working days of having been delivered to the European Commission, subject to confidentially scrutiny pursuant to Articles 20 and 22 of the Regulation.
13. In the event that BEREC - in its Opinion issued under Article 7a, paragraph 3 - shares the European Commission's serious doubts over the draft regulatory obligations notified by the NRA, the relevant EWG shall cooperate closely with the NRA concerned in order to identify the most suitable and effective remedies, carrying out the cooperation activities through any possible tool agreed between the NRA concerned and the Article 7a EWG.

Article 14 – Preparation and approval of the Work Program

1. With the aim of achieving the goals identified by the BEREC strategic outlook, the draft Work Programme of BEREC shall be prepared by the Chair with the assistance of the Office, if required, and of the Expert Working Groups; all Members and Observers can make proposals to the Chair.
2. The draft Work Programme shall then be submitted for the consideration and comments of Members and Observers through the Contact Network, after which an amended draft shall be submitted for the approval of the Board of Regulators.
3. Once approved by the Board of Regulators, the draft Work Programme shall be published RoP as revised in June 2014

for public consultation, which shall take the form of both a public hearing and written comments.

4. Having taken account of the responses, the Chair, with the assistance of the Administrative Manager, shall finalize the Work Programme. Before submitting to the Board of Regulators for final approval, she/he shall inform the Contact Network and, in relation to the attribution and/or confirmation of the Chairs of the Expert Working Groups as well as regarding the commitment of NRAs resources, the Expert Working Groups.
5. The Board of Regulators shall adopt the annual Work Programme of BEREC before the end of each year preceding that to which the work Programme relates.
6. The Board of Regulators shall transmit the Work Programme to the European Parliament, the Council and the Commission each year as soon as it is adopted.

Article 15 – Project Requirements Definition

1. Once the Work Programme has been approved and work items have been assigned to the Expert Working Groups, the Chair of each Expert Working Group shall prepare, with the assistance of the Office, a Project Requirements Definition (PRD) for each work item for which they are responsible.
2. The PRD shall provide a clear statement of the purpose and scope of the planned activity, taking into account the objectives set in the Work Programme. It shall set out:
 - a. the form which the deliverable(s) will take
 - b. the list of Members actively contributing to the Expert Working Group
 - c. the anticipated dates of interim and final delivery.

Article 16 – Public Consultations

1. Public consultations shall be organised in such cases where the input and comments of stakeholders is required.
2. Subject to paragraph 3, the Board of Regulators shall agree on a case-by-case basis, whether to organize a public consultation, by a written procedure, and/or a public hearing, to gather either comments on a draft document and/or opinions in a preliminary phase of analysis.
3. The consultation procedure shall in principle be restricted to one round of written comments in the case of a consultation document, unless specific circumstances require otherwise.
4. In deciding on whether and how to consult, the Board of Regulators shall take into account considerations such as the nature of the specific subject, possible alternatives to consultation, confidentiality issues, the interests of third parties, and the urgency of the matter.

5. Public consultations/hearings will be organised by the Office in coordination with the Chair of the relevant Expert Working Group, or with the Chair of the Board of Regulators in the case of paragraph 2.
6. The procedure for consultation and the time-scale for responses will be made available on the BEREC website.
7. The time-scale for responses will in principle be a minimum of 15 working days and a maximum of 20 working days.
8. Comments, to be addressed to the Office in written form, preferably by e-mail, will be made available on the BEREC's website, except where confidentiality has been requested.

Article 17 – Right of access to BEREC's documents and confidentiality

Without prejudice to the right of access to BEREC documents under EU legislation, the publication or making available to the public or any stakeholder of any BEREC Documents requires the prior approval of the Board of Regulators.

Article 18 – BEREC websites

The Office shall run a BEREC internal website (intranet). It shall be used as a closed platform for the electronic exchange of documents between Members and in appropriate cases Observers, and shall be the preferred method of document circulation among Members.

In addition, BEREC shall also have an external website, also run by the Office, where all BEREC documents approved by the Board of Regulators for publication will be published.

Article 19 - Declarations

1. Members of the Board of Regulators shall make a declaration of commitment to fulfil their duties and a declaration of interests which could be prejudicial to their independence. These declarations shall be made annually in writing and be entered in a register held by the Office which is accessible to the public, on request, at the seat of the Office. In addition, declarations of interests shall be published on the website of BEREC. These Declarations shall be made in accordance with the models contained in Annex 1 and 2.
2. At each meeting, members shall declare any interest which could be considered to be prejudicial to their independence with respect to any point on the agenda. Anyone declaring such interests shall not participate in any vote on the relevant point.

Article 20- Duty of confidentiality

Members of the Board of Regulators shall be required, even after their duties have ceased, not to disclose information of the kind covered by the duty of professional secrecy.

Article 21 – Revision of the Rules of Procedure

1. The Chair of the Board of Regulators may propose, following a request from one of the Members or on his/her own initiative, amendments to these Rules of Procedure.
2. These amendments shall be adopted by the Board of Regulators, in accordance with Article 9 of these Rules of Procedure. They may include in particular further specific provisions with regard to the Work Programme, Article 7 and transparency requirements.

Article 22 – General provisions

These Rules of Procedure shall be published on the BEREC website.

Annex 1

ANNUAL DECLARATION OF COMMITMENT FOR MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF REGULATORS acc. to Article 21 of the BEREC Regulation (1211/2009)

I, hereby declare that I shall make all reasonable efforts to fulfill my duties as a member of the Board of Regulators (BEREC).

More particularly, I undertake to exercise the functions entrusted to me by BEREC and not to seek or accept any instructions incompatible with my individual tasks or with the tasks of BEREC from any other party.

I understand that this Declaration will be entered in a register held by the BEREC Office which is accessible to the public, on request, at the seat of the Office.

Done at _____ on ____/____ 201__

Signature: _____

Position: _____

Annex 2
to the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Regulators
ANNUAL DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Conflict of Interest: Legal basis

General provisions on conflict of interest are laid down in the Staff Regulation and the Conditions of Employment of other Staff¹. The Financial Regulation defines what a conflict of interest of a financial nature is².

Article 21 of Regulation (EC) No 1211/2009 establishing the Body of European regulators for Electronic Communications (BEREC) and the Office provides for the obligation for the Members of the Board of Regulators and of the Management Committee, the Administrative Manager and the staff of the Office to make a declaration of commitments and a declaration of interests indicating the absence of any direct or indirect interests, which might be considered prejudicial to their independence. Such declarations shall be made in writing. The declaration of interests made by the members of the Board of Regulators and of the management Committee, the Administrative Manager shall be made public.

Therefore, as a rule, any person facing a conflict of interest situation is under a duty of informing and, as appropriate, discussing the best way of avoiding that the situation has an impact on the validity of the decisions.

The Board of Regulators and the Management Committee have therefore decided to give guidance on how these rules should be interpreted as far as the Members of the Board of Regulators Members of the Management Committee, the Administrative Manager and the staff of the Office are concerned.

Conflict of Interest: Definition

A conflict of interest exists when a person appointed to a function has a personal or vested interest in the outcome of decisions resulting from that function. Consequently, a person must not be involved in any decision during the course of his/her duties with the knowledge that there is an opportunity to further his/her personal interests.

It must be highlighted that an "interest" declared is not automatically considered a conflict of interest. Therefore, the immediate aim of a conflict-of-interest policy is to protect the integrity of official policy and administrative decisions and of public management generally.

¹ See in particular Article 11 of the Staff Regulations.

² See Article 34 of Commission Regulation (EC/Euratom) N°2342/2002 laying down the implementing rules.

OJ L357/1, 31/12/2002.

Interests can be direct or indirect depending on their likely or potential impact on the individual's behaviour at a given point in time:

- Direct interests: Interests of personal benefit to the individual at the time of declaration, likely to influence or given the appearance of influencing his behaviour.
- Indirect interests: Other interests that may have some influence over the individual's behaviour and therefore have to be neutralised.

Some examples of cases that could lead to a conflict of interests are:

a) any matter being considered by, or arising at, a meeting of the Board of Regulators and/or of the Management Committee in which a Member, the Administrative Manager, the staff of the Office or any household member have a direct or an indirect pecuniary interest;

b) a situation where a Member of the Board of Regulators and/or of the Management Committee, the Administrative Manager or the staff of the Office are in a position to make or make a decision, or are in a position to act or do act, motivated by other or additional considerations than the best interests of BEREC;

d) a situation where a Member of the Board of Regulators and/or of the Management Committee, the Administrative Manager, the staff of the Office or any household members learn of an opportunity for profit which might be valuable either personally or to any person in which they have a direct or indirect pecuniary interest.

These cases are not intended to be exhaustive.

It is recognized that it is often difficult to objectively assess whether a Conflict of Interest situation exists. If a Member of the Board of Regulators and of the Management Committee, the Administrative Manager or the staff of the Office feels that a potential Conflict of Interest position may exist he/she is bound to declare it immediately. Each individual is responsible for the declaration of his/her interests and, to the best of his/her knowledge, those of his household members. In order to maintain privacy, the names of the household members do not need to be declared.

Assessment of Conflict of Interest

Based on the information provided by the Member of the Board of Regulators and/or of the Management Committee, the Administrative Manager, the Management Committee or the Board of Regulators will jointly evaluate whether a declared interest constitutes a conflict. As a result of such assessment, the matter will be brought to the attention of the Board of Regulators/Management Committee.

Annual Declaration of Interests

Title (Ms., Mr., Dr., Prof.).....

First Name:

Surname:

Position: **Member of the Board of Regulators**

hereby declares to have the following direct or indirect interests of relevance to BEREC or the BEREC Office:

1. Work and activities in organisations relevant to the operating area of BEREC.

During the past 3 years, all activities performed for or on behalf of an organization operating in a related field, whether related to the substance of BEREC mandate or to its operational support, and whether or not these activities have been subject to regular or occasional remuneration in cash or kind, either by the declaring member or to the best of his/her knowledge the members of his/her household, including i) participation in the internal decision-making of a company (e.g. Board membership, executive or non executive directorship), ii) permanent or temporary member of the personnel of a company/institute (Other activities performed within a company (e.g. traineeship) are also subject to declaration.), iii) work contracted out by companies/institute, through consultancy or otherwise. Indicate names of organisation/Position/Period:

--

2. From the moment of taking the post of the Member of the Board of Regulators and/or of the Management Committee, any financial interests in a company relevant to the operating area of BEREC and/or voting rights in a company, including holding of stocks and shares, equity, bonds, partnership interests³ in the capital of a company, one of its subsidiaries or a company in the capital of which it has a holding (names of the companies):

--

³ When declaring financial interests e.g. stocks and shares, only the kind, number and company name need be stated.

3. Other links with the field of activity of BEREC during the preceding 3 years, including the participation in relevant activities supported by EU grants or contracts. All assistance and support received from stakeholders of BEREC, whether associated with direct or indirect pecuniary or material benefits, including: i) grants for study or research, ii) fellowships or sponsorships endowed by a company operating in the related business and iii) any other relevant activity related to EU grants and contracts. If such assistance or support is still subject to compensation in any form then declaration of any activity independently of granting period:

4. Any membership role or affiliation, or any other links with the organisations relevant to BEREC.

During the preceding 3 years, interests of non-pecuniary or material benefit to the declaring member, arising from professional activities or affiliation with national or international organisations or bodies with tasks similar to BEREC. It also includes the participation in public interest groups, professional societies, clubs or organisations which have an agenda or an interest or involvement in BEREC's work:

5. Other interests or facts whether or not related to such organisations which you consider should be made known to BEREC, including matters relating to the members of your household:

To the best of my knowledge, the only direct or indirect interests I, or any members of my household have, in organisations relevant to the operating area of BEREC related to my position referred to above are those listed above.

I further declare that should any changes occur and should it appear that I have or acquire additional interests that should be made known to BEREC I shall forthwith declare them and complete a new declaration of interests detailing the changes.

I understand that this Declaration **will be published on BEREC's website** and entered in a register held by the Office, which is accessible to the public, on request at the seat of the Office.

Signature:.....

Date:.....